ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 7, 2003
3:31 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns

Senat or Ben Stevens

Senator Kim El ton

Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Scott Ogan, Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 97

"An Act relating to public interest litigants and to attorney

fees; and anending Rule 82, Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure."”
MOVED SB 97 OUT OF COW TTEE

CONFI RVMATI ON HEARI NG Kevi n Duffy, Comm ssi oner, Al aska
Department of Fish and Gane

PREVI QUS ACTI ON
SB 97 - See Resources m nutes dated 3/28/03.
W TNESS REGQ STER

Al Sundqui st

3384 M. Vernon Ct.

Anchor age, AK 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to SB 97

Janel Wi ght

Disability Law Center

3330 Arctic Blvd. #103

Anchor age, AK 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to SB 97

June Pi nnel | - St ephens
3140 Roden Lane

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2003



Fai r banks, AK 99709
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to SB 97

Craig Tillery

Assi stant Attorney General

Departnent of Law

1031 W4th Ave.

Anchorage, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Explained the <changes to the proposed
comm ttee substitute to SB 97

Ken Jacobus

509 WThird

Anchor age, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to the proposed committee substitute
to SB 97

Al Burch

PO Box 884

Kodi ak, AK 99615

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports the confirmation of M. Duffy as
ADF&G conmi ssi oner

Chris Garcia

PO Box 203

Kenai, AK 99611

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Opposed to M. Duffy's appointnent as
comm ssi oner of ADF&G

Janet Cl ucas

72880 Sterling Hwy

Cl am @ul ch, AK 99568

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Does not support M. Duffy's appointnment if
he has been involved in the decline of the set net fishery.

Lynn Levengood

1008 16th Ave. Suite 200

Fai r banks, AK 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Qpposed to M. Duffy's confirmation.

Ken Duckett

Uni t ed Sout heast Al aska Gl netters

No address provi ded

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports M. Duffy's confirmation.

Jerry MCune
Uni ted Fi shernen of Al aska

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 7, 2003



211 4th Street, Suite 110
Juneau, Al aska 99801-1172
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 97

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-24, SIDE A
Number 0001

VICE-CHAIR TOM WAGONER called the Senate Resources Standing
Committee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Senators Dyson, Seekins,
Elton, Lincoln and Wagoner were present. The conmttee took up
SB 97.

#SB 97
SB 97- ATTY FEES: PUBLI C | NTEREST LI TI GANTS

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER told nenbers that a conmttee substitute (CS)
for SB 97, l|abeled Version D, had been prepared that is no
| onger specific to natural resource related litigation. He said
he plans to nove this bill to the Senate Judiciary Commttee and
asked participants to limt their testinony to 2 or 3 m nutes.

SENATOR SEEKI NS noved to adopt Version D of SB 97 as the working
docunent of the conmttee.

SENATOR ELTON objected for the purpose of hearing public
t esti nmony.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER t ook public testinony.

MR. AL SUNDQUI ST spoke in opposition to SB 97. He told nenbers
that laws of questionable constitutionality nust be chall enged
in the public interest. Public interest litigation provides the
nost effective way to defend Al askan's constitutional rights
agai nst encroachnents by state or |ocal governnents. SB 97 woul d
jeopardize the ability of individuals to hold Ilegislators
accountable for msjudgnments or msconduct. He asked conmttee
menbers to reject SB 97.

M5. JANEL WRI GHT, legal director for the Disability Law Center,
stated opposition to SB 97 for the follow ng reasons. The public
interest litigant rule protects the public's ability to
chall enge state decisions on matters of broad public interest
without the financial hardship of paying the state's attorney
fees if that litigation is unsuccessful. SB 97 elimnates this
protection by prohibiting courts from taking into consideration

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2003



the public interest nature of a case when the court determ nes
whether to award attorney's fees to the prevailing party. A very
i nportant conponent of the Disability Law Center's ability to
advocate on behalf of Alaskans with disabilities is judicious
pursuit of state court renedies. Elimnating public interest
litigant status wll effectively elimnate the opportunity of
individuals with disabilities to access the judicial branch of
their government to enforce their rights.

M5. WRIGHT pointed out that individuals wth disabilities have
t he highest unenploynent rate nationwi de and, as a group, have
t he hi ghest nunber living in poverty. If faced wth the prospect

of liability for the defense attorney's fees, individuals wth
disabilities will be wunable to protect their rights in the
court. The public interest litigant exception does not foster

frivolous lawsuits. The Al aska Suprene Court has clearly stated
that anyone bringing a frivolous Ilawsuit exposes both the
attorney and the client to defense attorney's fees.

M5. JUNE PINNELL-STEPHENS stated opposition to SB 97 because
when the governnent nakes a mstake, an individual should not
have to pony up the noney to go to court to have it corrected.
Only by gathering together as organizations can nost individuals
hope to take on that sort of action.

MR. CRAI G TILLERY, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Departnent of Law
(DAL), offered to answer questions.

SENATOR DYSON asked M. Tillery to explain the changes in
Version D and how those changes will clarify that the bill no
| onger pertains only to resource related litigation.

MR,  TILLERY told nmenbers that Version D is substantially
different from the original bill. The original version was
focused on particular decisions by particular agencies. Version
D takes a different approach and conpletely abrogates public

interest litigant fees except in those instances where the
| egislature my choose to anend by statute. For exanple,
currently, full attorneys fees are provided by statute for

consuner protection cases.

SENATOR DYSON said his inpression is that this bill is ainmed at
stopping frivolous lawsuits that inpede resource devel opnent
through the use of court injunctions. If those lawsuits are
filed for illegitimate reasons, the plaintiff would pay the cost
of the litigation. He asked if Version D broadens the scope to
the extent it wll have a danpening effect on soneone in the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2003



disability community who challenges a governnent action for
val id reasons but | oses the case.

MR. TILLERY told nenbers the original bill was broadened because
of concern about an equal protection challenge. DOL felt the

original bill would pass constitutional nuster, however the
argunment would be nore difficult than if the scope of the bill
was broadened. In addition, the original version of the bill

started "witing in what is excepted and it becones very
difficult to apply."

Regarding the effect on an individual bringing a disability
|l awsuit in the public interest, MR TILLERY said Version D would
require the individual to decide the likelihood of prevailing on
the nerits of the case before filing. If +the legislature
believes people should be able to bring a specific type of
|l awsuit, the |legislature could make that judgnent by making
exceptions in statute. This bill puts that decision squarely
back in the hands of the legislature by elimnating the court
system s broad- brush approach

VI CE-CHAI R WAGONER announced that Senator Ben Stevens was
present.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked how many states have adopted a rule
simlar to Rule 82.

MR. TILLERY said that very few, if any, have a simlar rule. He
said the federal system does not have one either. The U S
Suprene Court stated it is not the province of the court system
to make those judgnents; public interest litigant status should
be determ ned by a congressional or |egislative decision.

MR,  TILLERY said sone other state legislatures mght grant
attorneys' fees in specific instances, for exanple for consuner
protection or anti-trust cases. Neverthel ess, as a general rule,
those decisions are not in the court's purview

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if the legislature passes this bill as it
exists today [Version D], it could exenpt certain types of cases
t hrough anot her piece of |egislation.

MR. TILLERY said that is correct.
SENATOR ELTON said during the subcommttee discussion, his

under st andi ng was that no court rule would have to be elim nated
because public interest litigant status is an exception to a

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2003



court rule. However, he learned that a 1993 Suprene Court Oder,
No. 11-18, established a court rule that will be abrogated by
this | egislation.

MR. TILLERY said it is DO.'s view that the court created that
rule through judicial exception. To renpbve the court's ability
to apply that exception via this legislation would not abrogate
a court rule but sinply require the court to apply the origina
rul e.

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Tillery if he is famliar with the 1993
Suprenme Court Order No. 11-18.

MR. TILLERY said he did not have a copy of it.

SENATOR ELTON said it would be helpful to understand why an
exception is not a de facto court rule.

MR. TILLERY offered to get back to Senator Elton with an answer
to that question.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked the amount of general fund dollars spent
in 2002 on public interest litigation.

MR. TILLERY said from FY 93 through FY 03, the state spent $4.5
mllion.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how nuch of the $4.5 million was spent on
state resource agency cases.

MR, TILLERY said he would have to get back to Senator Lincoln
wi th an answer to that question.

3:50 p.m

MR. KEN JACOBUS, an attorney in private practice and for the
Republican Party, said his conmments to the commttee were on his
own behalf. He said he had no problem with the original bill
because it was designed to address a specific area of concern to
the Governor: protection of natural resources and economc
devel opment. Although he prefers other solutions, he could

support the original bill. However, he is opposed to broadening
the bill to include all public interest litigant cases. He
rem nded nenbers that when the governnent |oses a public
interest litigant case, there is nothing wong with requiring

the governnent to conpensate for its wongdoing. He pointed out
that a nunber of Republicans would not be in the |egislature

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2003



were it not for the redistricting case, which was public
interest litigation. Also, a nunber of |egislators could not
have collected canpaign contributions but for the Singleton
case, which allowed unlimted soft noney contributions, again,
public interest |litigation. He said if a voter wants to
chal l enge an election for a good reason, this bill would require
the individual voter to pay attorney's fees to the state if he
or she loses the case. He doubts anyone would have challenged
t he Li ndauer candidacy if that were the case.

MR. JACOBUS said he disagrees with M. Tillery's statenment that
Alaska Civil Rule 82 has a catch-all provision that says the
courts may vary attorney's fees if the equities of the case so
direct. The court can take any factor into account to determ ne
the inequities of the case. If the court is no longer able to
consider certain factors, that is the limtation on the catch-
all provision of Rule 82. He advised that he has no problemwth
the legislature protecting natural resource cases. However, to
take away the rights of public interest litigation across the
board is inappropriate because of the nunerous unintended
consequences. He asked nenbers not to enact the commttee
substitute [Version Dj.

SENATOR ELTON noted the purpose section of Version D cites
increased litigation, arguments made with little nerit,
difficulties in conpromsing clains, and significant cost to the
state and private citizens as reasons to elimnate public
interest litigant status. He said when he read that, his
i mredi ate thought was that it may save the state noney, but it
creates a difficult standard for Alaskan citizens to neet. He
asked M. Jacobus if that is the focus of his testinony.

MR. JACOBUS said some of the statements in the purpose section
are not really true. A person is unlikely to bring an argunent
with little nerit because if one loses a public interest case,
he or she does not get reinbursed for attorney's fees. He agrees
that the public interest litigant doctrine leads to increased
litigation, but it does not encourage frivolous litigation. He
said it does not increase difficulty in conpromsing clains and,
although it may cost the state nore noney, that cost is for
wrongs that need to be redressed.

SENATOR ELTON mai ntained his objection to adopting Version D as
the working draft before the conmttee. He said he has concerns
with the original bill, but those problens are nagnified in the
commttee substitute. He felt M. Jacobus's testinony was
conpelling. He stated his belief that the only way nany Al aska

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2003



citizens feel able to challenge an overreaching state
bureaucracy is through this rule.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked how many of the testifiers are public
i nt erest litigant att or neys. He questioned whether t he
testifiers today are attorneys whose fees are paid by public
interest litigants.

SENATOR DYSON indicated he takes significant exception to
Senator Stevens' statenent if it was an indictnment of M.
Jacobus's testinony or integrity.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said he was just making the point that the
conmmittee needs to take that into consideration.

VI CE- CHAl R WAGONER announced a brief at-ease.

SENATOR SEEKINS withdrew his notion to adopt Version D as the
wor ki ng draft before the commttee. He then noved to pass SB 97
fromcomittee with individual recomrendations.

SENATOR ELTON obj ect ed.

SENATOR LINCOLN told nenbers she wll be voting against the
notion. She said the cost of nmobst of the cases has been small so
for the legislature to tell Alaskans they have to give mnuch
thought to paying their own attorney fees for a public interest
case is wong. She noted she just received a letter from the
Al aska Village Council Presidents who said they were involved in

three public interest litigant cases, the Kasillie (ph) case and
challenges to state agency decisions about fish and wldlife
managenent. They are very concerned this legislation will deter

the common person from filing a lawsuit against a state agency
thereby all owi ng sone bad public decisions to be nade.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER said he would be supporting the bill because
he has seen, at tines, the unfairness of the public interest
litigant doctrine.

The notion to nove SB 97 from commttee carried with Senators
Seeki ns, Dyson, Stevens and Wagoner in favor, and Senators Elton
and Lincol n opposed.

VI CE- CHAl R WAGONER announced the bill would nove to the Senate

Judiciary Commttee with its appropriate fiscal notes.
#

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2003



4:07 p.m

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG - KEVI N DUFFY, ADFG

MR. KEVI N DUFFY, Conmi ssioner-designee of the Al aska Depart nent
of Fish and Gane (ADF&G, told nenbers in his previous roles as
deputy comm ssioner and deputy director of the Division of
Commercial Fisheries he has had a chance to neet with nost of
the conmttee nenbers. He prides hinself as having an open door
policy and wll maintain that policy as the conmm ssioner. He has
been enployed at ADF&G for 21 years. He is proud of ADF&G s
prof essional staff. ADF&G has a reputation for sound nanagenent
that has been earned in both national and international foruns
that others are envious of. He is under no illusions about the
challenges of the position of commssioner of ADF&G He
recogni zes the controversies associated with the decisions he
will rmake. He noted that Al askans are very connected to the
resources and are confortable expressing their opinions about
the use and managenent of those resources. He welcones the
public's input to the departnent and to the Boards of Gane and
Fisheries. He told nenbers he is conmtted to using sound
sci ence and bi ol ogy when naki ng resource managenent deci sions.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER announced he would first take testinmony from
a person with tine constraints and would then open the hearing
to questions fromcomittee nenbers.

MR. AL BURCH, a resident of Alaska since 1953 and a resident of
Kodi ak for 38 years, stated support for M. Duffy's appointnent.
He has commercially fished during his entire adult life. He has
worked with M. Duffy for a nunber of years on the North Pacific
Fi sheries Managenent Counci | and appreciates M. Duffy's
approach to the fisheries. He believes the key words in M.
Duffy's testinony were "good science." M. Duffy wll bring
Alaska into the 21st Century of fisheries managenment and wll
enable Alaska's coastal comunities to survive wth the
devel opnent of a groundfish industry.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER ent ertai ned questions fromcommttee nenbers.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked M. Duffy about his voting record as a
menber of the North Pacific Fisheries Managenent Council
(NPFMC), on a policy which requires crab fishernmen to sell their
catch to processors who own processor shares and on the |FQ
program for halibut sport charter vessels. She also asked his
view of the Division of Habitat transfer from ADF&G to the

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 7, 2003



Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) and how that can result in
nore efficiency with fewer people to issue pernits.

MR. DUFFY said he supported the concept of processor shares in
the crab rationalization program before the NPFMC. NPFMC spent
al nrost four years trying to design the future of the crab
program in the Bering Sea and Al eutian |Islands. Congress
instructed NPFMC to |look at the inpacts of a rationalization
program on conmunities, harvesters and processors. NPFMC
established a commttee of industry representatives from a broad
spectrum of interests that worked for about tw years to
identify a series of alternatives by which the Bering Sea crab
fishery could be rationalized. NPFMC, under his |ead,
established a three-part programthat included:

e IF@ to individual fishermen at 100 percent, based on
particul ar years selected for catch history.

* Processor shares at 90 percent to processors with a history
of processing crab in the Bering Sea and Al eutian Islands
based on a specific nunber of years.

e Inpacts to coastal comunities. The Council was clear in
its record about rationalizing the Bering Sea crab fishery.
That fishery is conprised of large vessels, a lot of non-
resident participation and a |lot of stranded capital on the
processi ng side.

NPFMC was very clear that the program should not be used as a
nodel or set a precedent for other fisheries under consideration
for rationalization, the next being the @lf of Al aska
groundfish fishery. He repeated that he did support processor
shares in that particular fishery and that a nunber of caveats
were included to protect the interests of |IFQ holders, or
harvesters. The processors are awarded 90 percent of their
hi storical [catch] and the harvesters have 100 percent IFQ so
it is not true that an individual fisherman is required to work
with a particular processor. The concept of 90-10 also created A
and B shares. B shares can be sold to anyone. Wen this program
was designed, it was incunbent upon NPFMC to find a programthat
was fair to all participants in the Bering Sea program

TAPE 03-24, SIDE B
MR. DUFFY said that decision was nmade in June of 2002 but the
processor share aspect wll require congressional approval. He

pointed out this program took alnost four years to devel op and
was approved by a vote of 11 to zero.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2003



MR. DUFFY said, 1in response to Senator Lincoln's second
guestion, he voted against the halibut charter IFQ program in
the fall of 2001 for a nunber of reasons. He explained that
NPFMC had decided to restrict that industry with a guideline
harvest |evel prior to his involvenent. It decided the guideline
harvest level for the charter halibut fishery could grow up to
125 percent of its historic percentage. If the level hit 125
percent, the fishery would be ratcheted down. The charter
hal i but program was set wup for Southcentral and Southeast
Al aska. As a new NPFMC nenber, he reviewed the record. The
di scussion centered on how the halibut charter industry was
exploding and needed to be controlled. It appeared to him that
the halibut charter industry was growing by |eaps and bounds.
Hi s conclusion was that a guideline harvest |evel program was
the correct way to manage that fishery over the long term

MR. DUFFY pointed out the halibut charter |FQ program goes one
step further and awards individual fishing quotas to charter
operators. He did not feel that was a necessary regulation in
the NPFMC process. Ohers felt differently. He noted that I|FQ
prograns for recreational fisheries are a significant national
public policy issue. He said he believes it will work but did
not believe it was necessary at the tine.

Regardi ng Senator Lincoln's third question, MR DUFFY said when
the decision was nmade to transfer Title 16 permtting
responsibilities from ADF& to DNR, he worked with the division
directors to create a structure to continue to protect fish and
wildlife habitats in the state. That structure retains certain
permtting functions within DNR and certain permtting functions
at ADF&G Title 16 permtting functions were noved to DNR but
other habitat related activities were retained at ADF&G When he
and others undertook this permt streamining effort, their goal
was to design a system with a nunber of trained professional
habitat biologists in DNR to maintain an effective and efficient
permtting system that would have sonme crossover ability to
consult with ADF&G That systemrequired a lot of analysis by a
| ot of people. The habitat division had nultiple funding sources
with multiple duties associated with each funding source. To
unravel that structure, the group tried to identify the anount
of nmoney and tinme these individuals spent on Title 16 habitat
permtting. The net result of that analysis is what was proposed
in EO 107.

VICE-CHAIR WAGONER pointed out that four of M. Duffy's

predecessors testified against EO 107 and tinme will prove who is
right. He said he is willing to support the Governor's proposal

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2003



but does not understand why EO 107 places the ultimate authority
with the deputy comm ssioner of DNR and the state forester. He
interprets that to nmean that decisions cannot be appealed to the
conmmi ssioner. Any decision will have to be appealed in court. He
asked why the proposal was structured that way.

MR. DUFFY said his understanding is that putting the decision

making authority at the deputy conmmssioner level wll not
actually erode any of the DNR commissioner's responsibility
because the conm ssioner will be held accountable.

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked how many people will be transferred from
the habitat division to DNR under this proposal.

MR. DUFFY answered about 35 or 36, of which 29 are professiona
bi ol ogi sts and the others are adm nistrative positions.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if that is the nunmber of positions or
actual enpl oyees.

MR. DUFFY said the collective bargaining process binds ADF&G to
inform the ADF&G enployees who could be adversely affected.
Under the <collective bargaining system sone enployees have
"bunpi ng" rights.

SENATOR SEEKI NS said one of his concerns is ganme nanagenent. He
asked M. Duffy what he envisions the relationship to be between
the Board of Gane and ADF&G

MR. DUFFY replied the relationship is one in which ADF&G
provides scientific and biological expertise to the Board of
Game to use when naking allocation decisions. ADF&G acts in an
advisory role to the Board of Ganme. In addition, the ADF&G
comm ssioner and the Board of Gane have a collaborative
rel ati onship. Wen the Board of Gane nakes certain decisions,
the conm ssioner is statutorily required to make a finding. He
sees the relationship as one in which ADF&G acts as support
staff to the board and, once decisions are made - one being the
Board of Gane recomrendation on Unit 19D East for the predator
control program - ADF&G provides the regulatory structure to
i npl enent t hose deci si ons. In certain si tuations, t he
commi ssioner nust also nmake a finding based on reconmendations
made by the Board of Gane.

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked, "Recommendations from the Gane Board - to
whont"

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- April 7, 2003



MR DUFFY corrected hinself and said "Direction."

SENATOR SEEKINS noted that a nunber of years ago the Board of
Game determned that the [ganme] populations were collapsing in
Unit 13 and authorized a predator control program He asked why
ADF&G has not carried that out.

MR. DUFFY said he cannot give a detailed answer because he was
not directly involved in game nanagenent issues during that
time. He said in the recent past, the Board of Ganme gave ADF&G a
set of directions on Unit 13. ADF&G initiated an inforned
consent process. Over the next year ADF&G will gather public
input and try to bring affected constituents up to speed on the
issues to conme to a set of conclusions to nove forward on an
effective predator control program in Unit 13. He anticipates
that he will make a decision next spring on the predator control
program

SENATOR SEEKINS asked where the requirenent for that process
exists in statute.

MR. DUFFY said he cannot specifically point to the statute that
gives himthat authority.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he does not think M. Duffy will find it.
He said the Board of Gane's statutory process authorizes the use
of predator control prograns. However, no statute says after the
Board of Gane has decided a problem exists, ADF&G should go
through the survey process and instigate a stakehol der process
when ADF&G bi ol ogi sts have already advised the Board that the
probl em exists. He said although M. Duffy supports the survey
concept and spending $56,400 on it, the public process already
occurred through testinmony to the Board of Gane. He asked what
it isinthis non-statutory process M. Duffy supports.

MR. DUFFY said the statutes he operates under as conm ssioner
give him sone fairly broad powers, duties and authorities.
Al t hough he cannot point to the specific statute, he has sone
| atitude in prograns that ADF&G noves forward wth.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he would like to know where that specific
authority Ilies in statute since the public input process
authority lies with the Board.

MR. DUFFY said Senator Seekins is correct in that the public

process authority lies with the Board of Gane. However, through
experience in ganme nmanagenent, ADF&G has found that providing an

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- April 7, 2003



informed consent process often allows an opportunity to npve
forward on controversial prograns and [devise a sustainable
solution]. One of his goals in initiating this one-year process
is to design a program that would be consistent with the Board
of Game's directive and to nove forward with a sustainable
programfor Unit 13.

SENATOR SEEKINS said the legislature has vested authority wth
the Board of Ganme but, in effect, the conm ssioner can veto the
Board's decision to inplenent an active managenent programin a
district by initiating another public process and not submtting
fi ndi ngs.

MR. DUFFY said he cannot "veto" Board of Gane decisions. He
believes he has sone |atitude once the Board of Gane provides
direction to nake a finding. He has sone discretion within those
findings. He acknow edged that Senator Seekins does not support
the approach that ADF&G has initiated but he argued that this
approach nmay provide a l|long-term sustainable predator control
program that nmay be nmuch nore effective in the end.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER said he gets the feeling that no one in ADF&G
wants to do predator control because they are afraid of the
threats of tourism and other boycotts. He indicated that
predator control prograns have worked in the past.

MVR. DUFFY said staff within the Division of Wildlife
Conservation focus on the best scientific information avail able
on which to base decisions. Wthin that confine, he believes a
nunber of professionals in ADF&G strongly support predator
control prograns. He personally supports them He pointed out
that ADF&G is adm nistering such a programin Unit 19D East in
McGath right now.

SENATOR LINCOLN noted McGath is in her district and said this
i ssue has been ongoing through at |east three adm nistrations.
The issue boils dowmn to inplenenting a real predator control
program using airplanes. She said during Governor Mirkowski’s
canpai gn, he talked about meking a decision based on science,
not enotion. Mst people in the McGath area were enthused that
sonmeone was going to take the predator control issue forward.
Very few noose are |left for human consunption in that area and
MG ath residents depend upon it for their subsi st ence
lifestyle. She then read M. Duffy's recent quote in the
Fai rbanks News Mner: "When predator control 1is inplenented,
t echni ques nmust be chosen based on effectiveness and
efficiency.” She said having been raised in Ranpart and living

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- April 7, 2003



there now, she knows that wolves are very hard to trap. She has
seen wolves kill npose just to show their cubs how to do it.
They do not al ways eat them

SENATOR LI NCOLN said she has a real problem with having to cone
back to this table to talk about predator control every year
She expressed frustration that M. Duffy again suggested that
ADF&G can send | ocal people out to trap wolves. That has not and
wi Il not work because the wolf popul ation has increased so nuch.
She said she was hoping [this adm nistration] mght "bite the
bullet” and do sonething effective but she now sees ADF&G
backing away to take nore public input. She said public input
has been solicited on this issue for at |east eight years. She
assured M. Duffy that ADF& will hear nothing new yet that
process will take one nore year. She nmaintained that the people
who live in that area depend on noose for food and cannot afford
to wait one nore year

SENATOR LINCOLN said the Board of Game clearly reaffirned the
previous board' s position that human consunptive use is the
preferred use of noose and that predator control in the McGath
area is necessary to help restore the abundance of the npose
popul ation to provide for human harvest. In addition, the board
recogni zed | ocal concerns and endorsed an experinmental predator
managenent program in Unit 19D East. She said this problem has
al ready been docunented and the decision was based upon science
and, although the decision has been controversial, she is
concerned about food for people who live in that area.

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Duffy if the Board of Gane recomrended
that a predator control program be inplenmented in Unit 13 that
i nvol ved helicopters and biologists, and the Governor did not
support that idea, who M. Duffy would listen to.

MR. DUFFY asked to first respond to Senator Lincoln's coment.
He said she quoted sonme of the decisions nade by the Board of
Gamre on Unit 19D. ADF&G chose an approach for Unit 19D whereby
depart nment enployees would fly the MGath experinental
managenent area in fixed wing aircraft and relay information on
the presence or absence of wolves. ADF&G would then use |oca
residents to participate in the predator control program

SENATOR LINCOLN responded, "That does not work. It's already
been tried."

SENATOR ELTON said the sane issues arise in fisheries.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -15- April 7, 2003



MR. DUFFY said in terns of his accountability as conm ssioner of
ADF&G, he is accountable to all of the citizens of the state and
ultimately his job is to protect, maintain and enhance the fish
and wildlife resources in the state. He said he faces a dynamc
tension when it conmes to predator control progranms. Wen he
makes a finding, he consults with the Governor's Ofice and
collectively they decide which program to go forward with. He
said he is responsive to both parties, the Board of Gane and the
Governor. He wants to do everything he can to support the Board
of Gane's decision-making authority and to inplenent the
prograns it suggests. He also believes it is not a perfect fit.
In making the findings he al so makes determ nations based on his
direct boss, the Governor. He said he wants to be clear that he

will be working with the Governor on these decisions and, in
doing so, he will do everything he can to support the Board of
Gane.

4:53 p.m

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER sai d he understands the position M. Duffy is
in, but it seens the Governor has said in past speeches that the
resources of this state wll be managed on biol ogical
principles. M. Duffy's staff has supported predator control
based on biological principles for years. He asked how M. Duffy
and the Governor couldn’t take the advice of ADF&G staff that
are being paid to make such recommendati ons. He st ated:

| think we got politicized at the top again and I'm

not so sure - the legislature anyway - is wlling to
sit here and watch one nore study go by. Wth that
study and the timng you' ve given us, | believe that's

two seasons and two nore litters of pups per pack and
not only are we going to be out of control, we're
going to be out of touch if that happens.

SENATOR DYSON said his sense is that the legislature will vote
to confirm M. Duffy and he appreciates the fact M. Duffy is
caught in the crossfire. He hopes M. Duffy can convey the sense
of this commttee to the Governor: that biologists, the Board of
Game, local residents, and commobn sense strongly support getting
on with it. He said the delays are very frustrating and nost
| egi slators do not believe they are justified. He commented that
nost people who are offended by the predator control program
woul d not vote for the Governor anyway.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he was pleased wth M. Duffy's opening
statenent in which he said his nanagenent style would be based

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- April 7, 2003



on sound science and biology. He said when he reviewed the
survey [on predator control] sent out by ADF&G it did not ask
anyt hi ng about biological nmanagenment. It asked how people felt
about predator control. In a letter of explanation, ADF&G
regional managers said it is inportant to know how people fee

about wusing short-term contraceptives to control the grizzly
bear population. He asked M. Duffy to explain how that hunman
di mensi on equates to bi ol ogi cal managenent.

MR. DUFFY said he will take Senator Seekins' concern about the
survey to his staff but he is not noving off of his position
that he supports decision-making based on the best biological
science at the gane board level and internally at ADF&G

SENATOR SEEKINS referred to an ADF&G chart that shows the npose
population in Unit 13 has decreased from 27,000 to 8,000 from
1988 to 2001. He asked if that decrease represents a biologica
ener gency.

MR. DUFFY said it certainly represents a serious biological
concern. He would have to consult with the appropriate manager
at ADF&G before draw ng that concl usion.

SENATOR SEEKINS said if that trend continues, the npose
popul ation will be wi ped out and that area is very close to one
of the largest netropolitan communities in the state. He said he
believes this is a sociological problem in that people are not
bei ng given a reasonabl e opportunity to harvest.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER t ook public testinony.

MR CHRIS GARCI A said, from a comercial fishing perspective, he
believes the higher-level staff at ADF&G have given the
comercial fishing industry a very bad tine over the last 20
years. For exanple, in the Kenai, the 2 percent aquaculture tax
equal s $187, 594,500, which was circulated in the |ocal econony.
By 1990, that anount was knocked down to just under $10 nmillion.
In his opinion, continuing on the current course will Kkill off
the whol e peninsula. He recormmended the |egislature not confirm
M. Duffy as the comm ssioner of ADF&G

M5. JANET CLUKAS, representing 16 set net fishing famlies in
the Ninilchik area, said those famlies used to nmake a viable
income from set netting, however over the last few years they
have been lucky to earn $2,000 per year. She said if M. Duffy
has been involved in that decline of income for set net
fi shernen, she cannot endorse him for the position of

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2003



comm ssioner. She nmaintained the fishery was doing well under
the old managenent plan until the Know es Adm nistration took
over.

MVR. LYNN L EVENGOOD, representing t he Al aska Wildlife
Conservation Association, said the Association's only goal is a
return of the abundance of wldlife. The Association has been
shocked by the acting commissioner's actions regar di ng
interfacing with the Board of Gane. Wen the Board asked himto
confirm that ADF&G biologists said that predation was causing
severe prey declines in Unit 19D, rather than providing the
board wth the finding it asked for, he provided a docunent
sayi ng ADF&G would fly over the area and tell the |ocal people
there are predators out there. M. Levengood said that M. Duffy
is proud of inplenenting a public opinion survey about people's
feelings, while the charts provided by ADF& show that an
energency exists in Unit 13 and that famlies will go hungry. He
said that is not managing by biology. He urged nenbers not to
confirmM. Duffy.

MR. KEN DUCKETT, Executive Director of the United Southeast
Al aska G llnetters' Association, stated support for M. Duffy's
confirmation. He said he had the opportunity to work with M.
Duffy on an allocation task force set up by the Board of Fish.

TAPE 03-25, SIDE A

MR. DUCKETT said that allocation nmatters between different gear
groups are difficult. They worked together on that process for
about three years and, without M. Duffy's participation, he is
sure those endeavors would not have been successful. He said to
lay the problens of the fisheries on M. Duffy because he
happened to be involved in the last adm nistration is not fair.
He asked nenbers to give M. Duffy a chance as he will do a good
j ob as comm ssi oner.

VICE-CHAIR WAGONER inforned participants that although the
commttee hearing was noticed as a confirmation hearing, M.

Duffy will stand for confirmation in front of the full body, not
this conmttee. The committee wll forward his nanme on to the
full panel.

MR.  JERRY MCUNE, Executive Director of United Fishernmen of
Al aska (UFA) , stat ed strong support for M. Duffy's
confirmation. UFA believes M. Duffy wll bring ADF&G together
and get things working in favor of everyone in the state.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2003



SENATOR SEEKI NS asked M. Duffy how the upper |evel structure of
ADF&G wi | | change and what new positions will be added.

MR. DUFFY said his deputy conm ssioner positions are not filled
as of yet. The current organization of the departnent has a
conmm ssioner, two deputy conm ssioners, a special assistant for
the Pacific Salnon Treaty, a special assistant that is federally
funded and a legislative liaison. The structure he is |ooking at
i npl enenting woul d have a conm ssioner, two deputy comm Ssioners
for fisheries and a chief wildlife scientist. He said depending
on his confirmation, and the |evel of expertise of the selected
deputy conm ssioners, he may or may not need to bring in someone
with scientific expertise. The CGovernor would like to see the
| evel of scientific expertise ratcheted up, which M. Duffy
supports.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if the directors report directly to the
comm Sssi oner.

MR. DUFFY said the division directors do not report to the
deputy comm ssioner. They discuss issues on a daily basis but
they report to the conm ssioner.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if the directors are required to be
degreed scientists.

MR. DUFFY said vyes; all current division directors have
bi ol ogi cal credentials. Scientific expertise resides within the
di vi si ons.

SENATOR LINCOLN nentioned that Senator Ted Stevens recently
challenged the Alaska House and Senate to resolve the
subsi stence issue. She asked M. Duffy's position on a
constitutional anendnent for a rural subsistence priority in
Al aska and what he intends to do in his role as conm ssioner to
get the issue resol ved.

MR. DUFFY said he supports the Governor's perspective, that
being to adopt a constitutional anendnment for a rural priority
and to make sonme nodifications to AN LCA

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to a letter the Alaska Village Counci

Presidents (AVCP) wote to the conm ssioner dated March 18 and
noted the comm ssioner responded that the [plan for the habitat
division] transition for permtting functions is noving forward.
She read from the comm ssioner's response, "I do not believe a
formal process to gather public input about the changes

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- April 7, 2003



undertaken is needed." She said she listened to M. Duffy say
ADF&G feels it is necessary to get nore public input on the
predator control issue, which is the opposite of what he
enphasized to the AVCP. In his response he also said, "And |
believe our mandate to achieve greater profitability in Al aska's
resource extraction industry is clear." She asked M. Duffy to
explain what he neant by that |ast statenment and how he w |
conbine that with his role as conm ssioner of ADF&G

MR. DUFFY told Senator Lincoln that letter was drafted for the
Governor's signature but in the flurry of letters associated
with EO 107, he inadvertently signed that letter hinself. He
said the letter talks about "ny plan" but he is a comm ssioner
who works for the governor who has a plan. He apol ogized for his
error. He said regarding the public input comments, at the tine
the letter was drafted, both the House and Senate were hol ding
heari ngs on EO 107. His conclusion, given the short tinmefranme of
an executive order, was that an appropriate public input process
relevant to EO 107 was being undertaken by the legislature. He
said the public weighed in significantly on that issue.

SENATOR LINCCOLN commented that the letter was witten on the
Conmmi ssioner's letterhead, not the Governor's.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER said he distributed to nenbers and M. Duffy
copies of a letter he received froma constituent. He then asked
M. Duffy what he tends to do to correct the type of m stakes
addressed in the letter and what he would do to assure those
m st akes do not occur in the future.

MR. DUFFY said he wants to reinforce within ADF&G the need to
provide the nost biologically defensible and scientifically
credible information to both of the boards. He will hold people
accountabl e through the chain of command for major m stakes that
are nmade. He explained that wthin the Board of Fisheries
process, proposals are conbi ned by subject matter; commttees of
1, 2 or 3 board nenbers are then forned. Commttees hold
neetings with nmenbers of the public to discuss potentia

solutions to the issues. Senator Wgoner's constituent argued
that inadequate tinme was provided to the public to respond to a
commttee report and that sonme of the information provided to
the conmttee was incorrect and nay have had inplications.

In response to the constituent's conplaint, MR DUFFY said the
Board sets deadlines for public review of commttee reports and
requires neetings to be held within the original dates. The
Board attenpts to make conpleted conmttee reports available to

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 7, 2003



the public as soon as possible for review prior to deliberation
before the full Board. There is a tinme crunch but the conmttee
tries to get the report witten as soon as possible. Regarding
the criticism that 12 ADF&G enployees were involved with a
commttee, he explained that only board nenbers are nenbers of
the commttee. ADF&G staff attends only to provide technica

advice, and often only tw or three staff attend neetings. The
fact that 12 enployees listened to the issue mght have neant
that particular issue was of interest to them

Regarding the incorrect information in the commttee report, MR
DUFFY said that was an unfortunate m stake and, due to the tight
time constraint, ADF&G actually provided percentages for nale
salmon instead of females. However, board menbers were nade
aware of the incorrect data prior to deliberations.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER said his point was the time crunch needs to
be exam ned because the state cannot afford to make m stakes on
acritical fishery.

MR. DUFFY concurred and said he will do everything within his
power to meke sure ADF&G is providing the best information
avai |l abl e at the tine.

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Duffy whether the Governor's Ofice was
informed of the particular enployees who may not be retained in
the transfer of the habitat division or whether the CGovernor's
Ofice provided ADF&G with nanes prior to notification of non-
retention.

MR. DUFFY said the short answer is no [nanmes were di scussed].

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Duffy whether he will delegate his seat
on the North Pacific Fisheries Managenent Council or whether he
w il serve.

MR. DUFFY said he wll serve. He believes Al aska needs to
enphasize the need to restructure and revitalize its salnon
industry. If he can maintain his council seat, a deputy
comm ssioner will be freed up to put greater enphasis on the
comer ci al sal non i ndustry.

SENATOR ELTON said that from M. Duffy's description of his
restructuring of the Commi ssioner's Ofice, he thinks the first
criterion for the second in charge should be sonmeone with strong
managenent skills since M. Duffy plans to keep his seat on
NPFMC.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- April 7, 2003



VI CE- CHAIR WAGONER said candidates with both strong scientific
and managenent skills are avail abl e.

SENATOR ELTON said his point was that strong scientific skills
shoul d not be the threshold issue.

SENATOR SEEKI NS thought nobst conm ssioners filled the seat on
NPFMC i n the past.

MR. DUFFY said that changed, depending on the conmm ssioner. He
said the previous deputy conm ssioner sat on NPFMC. |In response
to Senator Elton's comment, he said when he talked about a
revised structure in the Conm ssioner's Ofice, he tal ked about
two deputy conm ssioners - one to focus on fisheries issues, the
other to focus on wildlife issues. Depending on the nature of
the skill set of the people hired, those people may or may not
have very strong scientific credentials. He may instead choose
to hire someone with strong administrative skills and a |ong
term working relationship with the legislature. If that is the
case, he may bring in an additional person with scientific
expertise.

SENATOR ELTON said that idea scares him because given the budget
cut scenario of 90 and 95 percent of general fund dollars, the
only conponent with general fund dollars will be the Division of
Commercial Fish. Therefore, M. Duffy will be shifting general
fund dollars fromthat division to the conm ssioner's office.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER asked M. Duffy if he believes the state has
the processing capacity to handle its current run of salnon or
whether it wll need to allow the Russians to cone into Al aska
wat ers to purchase sal non

MR. DUFFY said based on ADF&G s capacity survey of the donestic
processors, Al aska has adequate donestic processing capacity to
handl e the anticipated salnon return in 2003.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked M. Duffy to describe his background in
wldlife issues and how much tinme he expects to spend at NPFMC
nmeeti ngs each year

MR. DUFFY said his background in wldlife issues is not his
strong suit, which is why he believes it is incunbent upon him
to rely on the expertise in the division and to hire someone
wWith expertise. In ternms of tinme spent on the Council, he said

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- April 7, 2003



the Council neets four tines per year; each neeting lasts one
week.

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER asked M. Duffy if he supports SB 70.

MR. DUFFY said he believes the attorney general's office has
participated in the hearings on SB 70. They see it as a
clarification of the comm ssioner's authority. If that is what
it does, he supports it wth the caveat that he would be |eery
of it if it puts himin a situation where he would constantly be
second guessing Board of Fish allocation decisions relative to
salnon. He said he would like the opportunity to consult wth
the attorney general's office before giving a nore definitive
answer .

VI CE- CHAI R WAGONER asked M. Duffy to get back to him wth an
answer .

SENATOR SEEKINS said he wunderstands that M. Duffy was not
personally involved in sone of +the decisions nade in the
managenent or m smanagenent of gane by ADF&G over the | ast
several years. However, many of his constituents feel strongly
that ADF&G is the departnent of "watch them and count them"
which is not managenent. They feel the upper levels of the
department support a philosophy of watching and keeping records.
He said these people, both urban and rural, want to put food on
the table for their famlies. He said that humans harvest |ess
than 3 percent of the annual harvestable surplus of ungul ates;
the rest go to predators. He said the precipitous decline in the
reproductive base is the result of predation, not of hunan
hunting. To see that this Adm nistration advocates further study
rather than biological managenent is shocking. He said his
constituents want to know what M. Duffy plans to do wthin
ADF&G s structure to fix that.

MR. DUFFY said during the first three nonths of the new
adm nistration, there has been a nove in a positive direction
relative to predator control progranms. It nay not be what
everyone wanted, but it is nmoving in a direction that is
responsive to the public. As comm ssioner, he wants to have a
strong working relationship with the gane board.

VI CE-CHAIR WAGONER asked M. Duffy what is the single nost
important factor in nmanaging the state's fisheries resources.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -23- April 7, 2003



MR. DUFFY answered scientific and biological credibility of the
information provided to the Board of Fisheries by which it nakes
al | ocati on deci si ons.

There being no further questions, SENATOR DYSON noved to forward
the nanme of M. Duffy to the full body for consideration for
confirmation, with the understanding that a vote in favor does
not i ndicate support for or objection to M. Duffy's
confirmation.

Wth no objection, VICE-CHAIR WAGONER announced the notion
carried. He then adjourned the neeting at 5:45 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 7, 2003



